
 
REGULAR MEETING  

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  

PUBLIC NOTICE OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ MEETING  

WEDNESDAY, JUNE 24, 2020  

12:00 P.M.  

228 TEXAS AVENUE, SUITE A, NEW BOSTON, TX 75570 
 

Notice is hereby given pursuant to V.T.C.A., Government Code, Chapter 551, that the Board of 

Directors of the Riverbend Water Resources District will conduct a meeting; open to the public, 

on Wednesday, June 24, 2020, at 12:00 p.m., at the Riverbend Water Resources District 

(“Riverbend”) office, in the Conference Room located at 228 Texas Avenue, Suite A, New 

Boston, TX 75570. 

 

The Board of Directors is authorized by the Texas Open Meetings Act to convene in closed or 

executive session for certain purposes. These purposes include receiving legal advice from its 

attorney (Section 551.071); discussing real property matters (Section 551.072); discussing gifts 

and donations (Section 551.073); discussing personnel matters (Section 551.074); discussing 

security personnel or devices (Section 551.076); or discussing economic development matters 

(Section 551.087). If the Board of Directors makes a determination to go into executive session 

on any item on this agenda, the Presiding Officer will announce that an executive session will be 

held and will identify the item to be discussed and provision of the Open Meetings Act that 

authorizes the closed or executive session. 

 

A G E N D A 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER & ROLL CALL 

 

II. INVOCATION & PLEDGE 

 

III. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 

The Board of Directors allows individuals to speak to the Board. Prior to the meeting, 

speakers must sign in on the public comment sheet. The time limit is five (5) minutes 

per speaker. 

 

IV. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS 

 

A. Discussion and possible action regarding May 27, 2020 Regular Meeting minutes. 

 

 

1



 
V. REGIONAL ENTITY REPORTS 

 

A. Discussion and possible action regarding activities with Sulphur River Basin 

Authority. 

 

B. Discussion and possible action regarding activities with TexAmericas Center. 

 

C. Discussion and possible action regarding activities with REDI. 

 

VI. AGENDA ITEMS FOR INDIVIDUAL CONSIDERATION 

 

The Board of Directors will consider, discuss, and if appropriate, take action on the 

following item(s): 

 

A. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of a resolution granting the 

Executive Director/CEO signature authority to execute water supply contracts 

between Riverbend and all Member Entities. 

 

B. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of a resolution authorizing the 

Executive Director/CEO to accept and award bids not to exceed $75,000 on a 

sewer cleaner. 

 

C. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of a resolution authorizing the 

Executive Director/CEO to execute an interlocal agreement for employees’ 

medical insurance with TML Health Benefits Pool. 

 

VII. RIVERBEND REPORTS 

 

A. Board Members 

 

B. Executive Director/CEO 

 

VIII. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

The Board of Directors is authorized by the Texas Open Meetings Act to convene in closed or 

executive session for certain purposes. These purposes include receiving legal advice from its 

attorney (Section 551.071); discussing real property matters (Section 551.072); discussing gifts 

and donations (Section 551.073); discussing personnel matters (Section 551.074); discussing 

security personnel or devices (Section 551.076); or discussing economic development matters 

(Section 551.087). If the Board of Directors makes a determination to go into executive session 

on any item on this agenda, the Presiding Officer will announce that an executive session will be 

2



 
held and will identify the item to be discussed and provision of the Open Meetings Act that 

authorizes the closed or executive session. 

 

IX. NEXT REGULAR MEETING 

 

Riverbend Regular Meeting, July 22, 2020 at 12:00 p.m. at Riverbend Offices, 228 A 

Texas Avenue, New Boston, Texas 75570. 

 

X. ADJOURNMENT 

 

Kyle Dooley 

Kyle Dooley, Executive Director/CEO 

Riverbend Water Resources District 

 

*Persons with disabilities who plan to attend the RWRD Board of Directors’ meeting and who 

may need auxiliary aids or services are requested to contact the RWRD Administrative Offices 

at (903) 831-0091, as soon as possible. All reasonable efforts will be taken to make the 

appropriate arrangements. 

3



REGULAR CALLED MEETING  

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  
WEDNESDAY, JUNE 24, 2020 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CONSENT AGENDA ITEM IV. A. 

May 27, 2020 

Regular Meeting Minutes 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4



 

  

Regular Called Meeting 

Riverbend Water Resources District    

Board Meeting Minutes  

May 27, 2020 

228 Texas Avenue, Suite A, New Boston, Texas 75570   

 
M I N U T E S 

 

I. Call to Order, Roll Call, and Establishment of Quorum and Certification of   

 Notice 
 

Pursuant to a notice posted on the District website, the Chair, Sonja Hubbard, President 

of the Board, called the meeting to order at 12:05 p.m.     

  

Directors Present: 

Sonja Hubbard, President 

Tina Veal-Gooch, Vice President 

Van Alexander, Treasurer 

Marshall Wood, Secretary 

Fred Milton, Past President 

 

Directors Absent:  

None 

  

Administration Present: 

Kyle Dooley, Executive Director/CEO 

Eli Hunt, Operations Manager 

Becky Melton, Executive Assistant/HR Manager 

          

Public Present: 

 

Please see the attached list for additional guests.  

 

II. Invocation & Pledge 

 

 Sonja Hubbard led the invocation & the pledge of allegiance. 

 

III. Public Comments 

  

None. 

 

IV. Consent Agenda Items 

 

Item IV.A. was considered under a Consent Agenda for one single motion of approval. 

 

A. Discussion and possible action regarding April 22, 2020 Regular Called Meeting 

Minutes. 

5



 

  

B. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of  RESO 20200527-01 

reviewing and approving the Capitalization Policy. 

 

A single motion was made by Tina Veal Gooch and seconded by Van Alexander to 

approve the Consent Agenda Items as listed above. The motion passed unanimously. 

V. Regional Entity Reports 

 

A. Discussion and possible action regarding activities with Sulphur River Basin 

Authority (SRBA). 

 

No report. 

 

B. Discussion and possible action regarding activities with TexAmericas Center 

(TAC). 

 

No report. 

 

C. Discussion and possible action regarding activities with Ar-Tex REDI. 

 

No report. 

 

VI. Agenda Items for Individual Consideration 

 

A. Discussion regarding Riverbend’s Water Conservation Plan and Drought 

Contingency Plan. 

 

Kyle Dooley provided that Riverbend annually reviews its Water Conservation and 

Drought Contingency Plans. As a regional water provider that has funding through the 

Texas Water Development Board (TWDB) Riverbend is required to review and update 

these plans at least every five years. Last year, the Water Conservation Plan was 

updated to reflect changes in rates. This year we will not have any changes to either of 

these plans.  

No action taken 

B. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of a resolution authorizing the 

addition of 2 credit card accounts with Texar Federal Credit Union for the Wet 

Utilities Fund. 

Kyle Dooley provided information on the need to add two credit cards to the Wet Utility 

Fund. Perviously, employees that needed to make a purchase would have to come in to 

the office and check out a credit card. With limiting the administrative staff’s presence 

in the office, we decided to sign out the credit cards to supervisors to limit their need 

to come to the office.  This arrangement has proven to be very convenient for 

operations. In order to maintain this convenience, the District would like to add two 

additional cards. One for one more supervisor to carry and one for the administrative 

staff to use in the office to maintain operations.  

6



 

  

A motion was made by Marshall Wood and seconded by Van Alexander to approve 

RESO 20200527-02 authorizing the addition of 2 credit card accounts with Texar 

Federal Credit Union for the Wet Utilities Fund.. The motion passed unanimously.  

C. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of a resolution acknowledging 

the completion and accepting the findings of the Retail Rate Study as conducted 

by NewGen Strategies, Inc. 

 

Kyle Dooley provided a reminder that Chris Ekrut of NewGen Strategies presented the 

findings of the rate study at our April 22nd meeting held virtually via GoToMeeting. 

The final report of those findings is what the board is considering approval on. 

Referencing page 42 of the agenda packet, Mr. Dooley addressed the benchmarks for 

the commercial and residential rates that Riverbend charges. He provided that because 

Riverbend is transitioning from a wholesale buyer to a wholesale producer. The water 

and wastewater rates just cover the expenses Riverbend incurs to operate.  

 

A motion was made by Tina Veal-Gooch and seconded by Marshall Wood to approve 

RESO 20200527-03 acknowledging the completion and accepting the findings of the 

Retail Rate Study as conducted by NewGen Strategies, Inc. The motion passed 

unanimously. 

 

D. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of a resolution approving an 

update to Riverbend’s Restricted Funds Policy.  

 

Kyle Dooley provided that this item stems from a recommendation made by NewGen 

Strategies to create a rate stabilization fund. This fund would help to insulate 

Riverbend’s water and wastewater fund based on the fluctuation of revenue year to year 

caused by the percentage of the usage of water by the Army year to year. The funds 

will be internally restricted. The amount restricted will be the portion of water and 

wastewater net income from commercial and residential customers. This fund will help 

Riverbend cover expenses without raising rates during a year when water and 

wastewater sales are lower than other years. If over a period of a few years, it is revealed 

that our rates are not covering expenses or we consistantly have excess funds, 

Riverbend will consider a rate adjustment.   

 

A motion was made by Marshall Wood and seconded by Tina Veal-Gooch to approve 

RESO 20200527-04 approving an update to Riverbend’s Restricted Funds Policy. The 

motion passed unanimously.  

 

E. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of a resolution authorizing 

the Executive Director/CEO to report staff compliance with required cyber-

security training. 

 

Kyle Dooley provided informaton on a HB 3834 that passed in the Texas House of 

Representatives in June of 2019. This bill requires state and local governments to 

complete cybersecurity training by June 15, 2020. The Texas Department of 

Information Resource (TxDIR) certified training programs for state and local 

governments to attend. Once the training is completed, the governing body of local 

governments must authorize a person to verify that the training has been completed 

7



 

  

by all employees. Riverbend obtained a certified training program from San Antonio 

River Authority. It was modified to fit the needs of Riverbend and distributed via 

video for employees to watch. All employees have viewed the recording and have 

signed a document verifying their completion of the required cybersecurity training.  

 

A motion was made by Van Alexander and seconded by Fred Milton to approve 

RESO 20200527-05 authorizing the Executive Director/CEO to report staff 

compliance with required cyber-security training. The motion passed unanimously. 

 

F. Discussion and possible action regarding Wright Patman Lake and various 

regional water issues, including activities in the Arkansas and Texas Legislatures. 

 

Kyle Dooley provided information on the Ultimate Rule Curve and the Contibuted 

Funds Agreement. The US Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) sent an email earlier 

this month stating that they have received a draft of the contributed funds agreement 

for the environmental study that needs to be completed at Wright Patman Lake to 

determine what mitigation is required. The USACE is making a determination on what 

activities are needing completion before they execute the in-state contract 

implementing the ultimate rule curve. The USACE is looking to have a full team kick-

off meeting in late June. Mr. Dooley had a conference call with Ray Russo and the City 

of Texarkana to disucss the comments on the draft agreement by each party. The 

environmental study and the implementation of the ultimate rule curve will cost about 

$20 million. Those funds are included in the funds we have applied for through the 

Texas Water Developent Board.  

 

No action taken. 

VII.  Riverbend Reports 

 

A. Board Members 

 

No reports. 

 

B. Executive Director/CEO 

 

Kyle Dooley provided the following updates: 

 

Since the shelter-in place order has expired, Riverbend office staff is back in the office 

full time. Our operations team is still working as normal.  

 

Regarding the Texas Water Development Board (TWDB), the water supply contracts, 

and SRF Application: Monday May 11, Riverbend held a face-to-face mayor’s meeting 

at the community center in New Boston to discuss the draft water supply contracts. The 

draft of these water supply contracts needed to be turned in to the TWDB by May 15th 

in order for our application for SRF Funds to be considered at their July meeting. The 

mayors’ meeting went very well and resulted in a final agreement on the wording in all 

of the contracts. The members now have everything they need to move forward with 

getting the contracts approved by their boards or councils. The City of Texarkana has 

an item on their June 8th agenda to consider moving forward on the water supply 

8



 

  

contract. We look for the other members to have their contracts signed by the end of 

July.  Due to limiting attendance to council meetings because of social distancing 

recommendations, Mr. Dooley will let the board know if and when they may be needed 

to attend the members’ meetings where they plan to approve and sign the water supply 

contract. 

 

Mr. Dooley recommends we cancel the annual open house typically scheduled in June.  

 

No action taken.  

 

VIII.  Executive Session 

The board stood at ease at 12:41 p.m. 

 

The board reconvened in Executive Session at 12:45 p.m with quorum pursuant to 

section 551.071 of the Texas Open Meetings Act. 

 

The board came out of Executive Session at 1:42 p.m.  

 

The board reconvened with quorum at 1:44 p.m.  

 

IX. Next Riverbend Meetings 

Please note the deviation from the posted Riverbend Calendar: 

 

Riverbend Regular Meeting, Wednesday, June 24, 2020 at 12:00 p.m. at Riverbend 

Offices, 228 A Texas Avenue, New Boston, Texas 75570. 

X.  Adjournment 

 

With no additional business to be discussed, a motion was made by Tina Veal-Gooch 

and seconded by Marshall Wood to adjourn the meeting at 1:45 p.m. The motion passed 

unanimously. 

 

The minutes of Riverbend Water Resources District Board of Directors meeting, May 27, 

2020 were read and approved on the _____ day of ________________, 2020. 

 

 

_______________________________________   

Sonja Hubbard, President 

 

Attest:  

 

 

________________________________________  

Kyle Dooley, Executive Director/ CEO 

9



REGULAR CALLED MEETING  

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  
WEDNESDAY, JUNE 24, 2020 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM VI. A. 

RWRD RESO 20200624-01 

Water Supply Contract  

Signature Authority 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

10



 

 

RIVERBEND RESOLUTION NO. 20200624-01 

 

AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR/CEO SIGNATURE AUTHORITY TO 

EXECUTE WATER SUPPLY CONTRACTS WITH MEMBER ENTITIES OF 

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT 

 

WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District (“Riverbend”), created in 2009, is a 

conservation and reclamation district created under and essential to accomplish the purpose of 

Section 59, Article XVI, Texas Constitution, as set forth in Title 6, Special District Local Laws 

Code, Subtitle L, Municipal Water Districts, Chapter 9601, and is comprised of member entities 

(collectively referred to as “the Member Entities”); and 

 

WHEREAS, Riverbend and the Member Entities have collectively worked toward 

Riverbend becoming the regional wholesale water provider and for Riverbend’s procurement 

of funding for new regional water infrastructure and improvements; and 

 

WHEREAS, Riverbend and the Member Entities have also collectively worked to 

develop a Water Distribution and Supply Contract that will provide for long-term regional 

water service to the region; and 

 

WHEREAS, Riverbend finds that entering into the Water Distribution and Supply 

Contract with each Member Entity will provide for a long-term regional water supply and the 

necessary infrastructure improvements for each Member Entity. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Executive Director/CEO shall be 

and is immediately granted signature authority to implement the purposes and intent of this 

resolution, including but not limited to execution of the Water Distribution and Supply Contract 

containing the material terms set forth in the template attached hereto as Exhibit A, and all 

related coordination with the Member Entities for full execution and implementation of same. 

 

PASSED and APPROVED this 24th day of June 2020 

 

 
 

       ____________________________________ 

       Sonja Hubbard, President 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________________ 

Marshall Wood, Secretary 

 

Attached: Water Distribution & Supply Contract Example 
11



WATER DISTRIBUTION AND SUPPLY CONTRACT 

THIS WATER DISTRIBUTION AND SUPPLY CONTRACT (“Contract”), made and 

entered into by and between the Riverbend Water Resources District, a conservation and reclamation 

district and body politic and corporate, having been created under Article XVI, Section 59 of the 

Texas Constitution (“Riverbend”) and the City of Leary, Texas (“Member Entity”). Riverbend and 

Member Entity may be referred to herein individually as a “Party” and collectively as the “Parties.” 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, Member Entity is a General Law Type A city under the laws of the State of 
Texas located in Bowie County, Texas; and 

WHEREAS, in 1969, the City of Texarkana, Texas entered into a “Water Supply System 

Sale-Purchase-Financing Agreement” with Lake Texarkana Water Supply Corporation 

(“LTWSC”), attached hereto as Exhibit A, for the provision of regional water service through the 

purchase of various assets set forth in Schedule A of that agreement (“Company Facilities”), 

including the raw water intake at Wright Patman Lake and the New Boston Road Water 

Treatment Plant located in Texarkana, Texas; and 

WHEREAS, also in 1969, the City of Texarkana, Texas, entered into multiple water 

supply contracts attached hereto as Exhibit B with, respectively, the City of Annona, Texas, the 

City of Avery, Texas, the City of DeKalb, Texas, the City of Hooks, Texas, the City of Maud, 

Texas, the City of New Boston, Texas, and the City of Wake Village, Texas (“the Texas 

contracting cities”), for provision of potable water by means of Company Facilities; and 

WHEREAS, LTWSC’s bonded indebtedness was retired, LTWSC was involuntarily 

dissolved effective March 21, 2007, the Texas contracting cities exercised their respective rights 

under the Exhibit B contracts for a proportionate undivided ownership interest in Company 

Facilities calculated per formula and other criteria set forth in the contracts, and Texarkana, 

Texas, conveyed such interests to each of the Texas contracting cities; and 

WHEREAS, on May 6, 2008, the Texas contracting cities and the City of Texarkana, 

Texas, entered into an Interlocal Cooperation Agreement establishing a governance group to 

work cooperatively to create a new water district that would benefit all of the parties to the 

agreement, and developing enabling legislation that would lead to the creation of Riverbend; and 

WHEREAS, effective June 19, 2009, Riverbend was created by the Texas Legislature as a 

conservation and reclamation district, created under and essential to accomplish the purpose of 

Section 59, Article XVI, Texas Constitution, codified at Title 6, Special District Local Laws Code, 

Subtitle L, Municipal Water Districts, Chapter 9601, with statutory powers including the authority 

to acquire any and all storage rights and storage capacity in a reservoir or other water sources inside 

or outside the boundaries of Riverbend, and to acquire the right to take water from that reservoir or 

source, subject to the rights or permits held by municipalities or other persons; and 

WATER DISTRIBUTION AND SUPPLY CONTRACT Page 1 of 22 

12



WHEREAS, in 2010, the City of Texarkana, Texas, and the Texas contracting cities 

entered into extensions of the 1969 water supply contracts, attached hereto as Exhibit C; and 

WHEREAS, in 2011, the Texas Legislature reconstituted the Riverbend Board of 

Directors to be comprised of five (5) qualified voters who are residents within Riverbend’s 

territory, as appointed by the local governing bodies of the Riverbend Member Entities pursuant 

to Sections 9601.005 and 9601.051 of the Texas Special District Local Laws Code; and 

WHEREAS, Riverbend has identified regional water infrastructure projects under the 

Riverbend Regional Water Master Plan Study, attached hereto as Exhibit D, to be completed in 

order to improve and operate the Company Facilities; and 

WHEREAS, Riverbend has also conducted a regional rate study identifying rates for the 

distribution and provision of water service in a take-or-pay arrangement pursuant to an agreed 

upon volume of water supply to Member Entity and other surrounding entities for the purpose of 

supporting the issuance of bonds; and 

WHEREAS, as provided in section 21 of the Exhibit B contracts, the Texas contracting 

cities and the City of Texarkana, Texas, agreed that when LTWSC had been retired and 

proportionate undivided ownership interests in Company Facilities had been conveyed, they 

would provide appropriate arrangements for continued operation and maintenance of Company 

Facilities according to circumstances at the time; and 

WHEREAS, circumstances today demonstrate aging Company Facilities, increased 

regional need for potable and non-potable water, and economic development opportunities that 

may be advanced by construction of regional water infrastructure improvements, and therefore 

the Parties desire to enter into this Contract to effectuate the improvement of Company Facilities 

pursuant to the Riverbend Regional Water Master Plan Study (the “Planned Improvements”) and 

provide for regional water service, including that needed by Member Entity; and 

WHEREAS, Member Entity acknowledges that Riverbend will be requesting funds from 

the Texas Water Development Board and/or other state and federal entities in the form of bonded 

indebtedness, and that this Contract and all other contracts with surrounding entities will be used 

to support and secure these funds to pay for the Planned Improvements and the operation and 

maintenance of the regional water distribution system; and 

WHEREAS, Member Entity acknowledges that any additional regional improvements or 

enhancements beyond the Planned Improvements must be approved by separate written 

agreement, and that this Contract is intended to cover only the Planned Improvements as 

specifically defined herein; and 

WHEREAS, Member Entity and Riverbend acknowledge the obligations of the City of 

Texarkana, Texas, to continue to supply water through Company Facilities to other contracting 

entities; and 

WATER DISTRIBUTION AND SUPPLY CONTRACT Page 2 of 22 

13



WHEREAS, Member Entity intends to fix and collect such rates and charges and/or 

provide for other funds legally available and reasonably assured for the purpose of tendering 

payment to Riverbend for the Planned Improvements and continued operation and maintenance 

of Company Facilities (collectively, “Regional Water System Facilities”, as more specifically 

defined below); and 

WHEREAS, said operation and maintenance of Regional Water System Facilities shall 

include, by separate agreement with the City of Texarkana, Texas, Riverbend’s access to Company 

Facilities, use of certain water rights obtained by Texarkana, Texas, set out in Certificate of 

Adjudication No. 03-4836 issued by the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (“TCEQ”) 

or its predecessor agency, and use of storage space in Wright Patman Lake as specified in contracts 

between the United States Government and Texarkana, Texas (Contract No. DACW29-68-A-0103 

and Contract No. DACW29-69-C-0019); and 

WHEREAS, both Riverbend and Member Entity, acting through their duly constituted 

governing bodies, have mutually agreed upon the terms and conditions of this Contract; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants, agreements and 

undertakings set forth herein, the Parties agree and contract as follows: 

SECTION 1: DEFINITIONS 

Terms and expressions as used in this Contract, unless the context clearly shows otherwise, shall 

have the following meanings: 

(A) “Advances” means the advance payments, if any, made by Member Entity for 

initial Riverbend operations pursuant to that 2011 Amendment to Water Purchase 

Contract, attached hereto as Exhibit E, that were paid upfront in exchange for 

dollar-for-dollar Water Payment Credits that apply to Member Entity’s water 

purchases at such time as Riverbend begins selling water to Member Entity upon 

completion of the new water treatment plant portion of the Planned Improvements. 

(B) “Connection” means a single family residential unit or each commercial or 

industrial establishment to which drinking water is supplied from the system, as 

set forth in Title 30, Texas Administrative Code, Part 1, Chapter 290, Subchapter 

D, Section 290.38, as it may be renumbered or amended. 

(C) “Effective Date” means the date of last execution by the Parties to this Contract, 

as set forth in Section 16(m). 

(D) “Excess Water Sold” means any additional water purchased by Member Entity 

above the Minimum Quantity. 

(E) “Fiscal year” means the twelve month period beginning October 1 and ending 

September 30, or such other twelve month period as designated by Riverbend. 

(F) “Gpm” means gallons per minute, U.S. standard liquid measure. 

WATER DISTRIBUTION AND SUPPLY CONTRACT Page 3 of 22 

14



(G) “Minimum Quantity” means the minimum amount of water that shall be purchased 

by Member Entity per each fiscal year during the Term of this Contract. 

(H) “Minimum Monthly Payment” means the base payment that is calculated 

according to Section 3 and is automatically billed to Member Entity each month 

during the Term of this Contract. 

(I) “Planned Improvements” means the construction, improvements and betterments 

to the regional water treatment and distribution facilities as specifically identified 

in the attached Exhibit F.  

(J) “Point of Delivery” means the master meter location at which Member Entity 

takes delivery of the wholesale treated water from Riverbend, the location of 

which is specifically set forth in Exhibit G.  

(K) “Regional Capital Improvement Fund” means funds which are restricted to be used 

for costs of depreciation, rehabilitation and/or repair of the Planned Improvements, 

and specifically limited to the maximum treatment and distribution capacity of the 

Planned Improvements. Funds allocated to the Regional Capital Improvement 

Fund shall only be from those rates in place during the same fiscal year as the 

transfer of funds to the Regional Capital Improvement Fund. 

(L) “Regional Water System Facilities” means all regional water distribution and 

treatment facilities previously referred to as “Company Facilities,” together with 

the Planned Improvements, including Riverbend’s operation and maintenance 

thereof, and any outstanding debts related to all such facilities. 

(M) “Riverbend Member Entity(ties)” means those entities specifically listed as 

members of Riverbend under Section 9601.005(a) of the Texas Special District 

Local Laws Code, as it may be renumbered or amended, and those additional 

member entities as of the Effective Date of this Contract, including the City of 

Annona, the City of Avery, the City of DeKalb, the City of Hooks, the City of 

Leary, the City of Maud, the City of Nash, the City of New Boston, the City of 

Redwater, the City of Texarkana, Texas, the City of Wake Village, the Central 

Bowie Water Supply Corporation, the Oak Grove Water Supply Corporation, and 

the TexAmericas Center. The term shall also include any members added pursuant 

to Section 9601.005(b) of the Special District Local Laws Code, as it may be 

renumbered or amended. 

(N) “Riverbend territory” means all of that territory in the Cities of Annona, Avery, 

DeKalb, Hooks, Leary, Maud, Nash, New Boston, Redwater, Texarkana, Texas, 

Wake Village, Central Bowie Water Supply Corporation, Oak Grove Water Supply 

Corporation, and the TexAmericas Center, and shall also include the territory of any 

municipality, county, or other political subdivision that joins the district as a member, 

and all that territory added to that of a Riverbend Member Entity by annexation or 

WATER DISTRIBUTION AND SUPPLY CONTRACT Page 4 of 22 

15



other means, as set forth in Section 9601.006 of the Special District Local Laws 

Code, as it may be renumbered or amended. 

(O) “TCEQ” means the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality, or its 

predecessor or successor agency, as applicable. 

(P) “Term” means the duration of this Contract as set forth in Section 6. 

(Q) “Transition Date” means the date when the Riverbend Board of Directors 

determines that Riverbend has the capability to provide potable water in agreed-

upon quantities to Member Entity and all other Member Entities by means of the 

Regional Water System Facilities, as more specifically described in Section 12. 

(R) “Total Monthly Payment” means the Minimum Monthly Payment plus any 

additional payments required under Section 3, if any, due to Riverbend each month. 

(S) “Ultimate Rule Curve” means “the total operating rule curve storage space” as 

currently defined or amended in Article 1, section “c”, of the contract between the 

United States of America and Texarkana, Texas, Contract No. DACW29-68-A-

0103, and as authorized by the State of Texas as necessary to implement the 

permanent lake level of Wright Patman Lake. 

(T) “Water Payment Credit(s)” means the dollar-for-dollar reduction of the total 

annual payment owed for the Minimum Quantity that is applied through a pro rata 

reduction to each Minimum Monthly Payment, which shall be disbursed by 

Riverbend in recognition of and based upon the Advances, if any, paid by Member 

Entity in accordance with Section 3(g). 

SECTION 2: QUANTITY OF WATER; POINT OF DELIVERY; TITLE 

(a) Minimum Take-or-Pay Quantity. Riverbend will make available to Member Entity at the 

Point of Delivery defined herein in Subsection (e), and Member Entity agrees to purchase 

and take at said Point of Delivery, wholesale treated water in an amount not less than 

16,693,940 gallons per fiscal year, provided at the Rate of Delivery and pressure stated 

below in Section 2(j). Member Entity agrees to make the Minimum Monthly Payments 

calculated as set forth in Section 3 as consideration for such distribution and provision of 

wholesale treated water and Riverbend’s operation and maintenance of the Regional Water 

System Facilities during the Term. The Minimum Quantity is based upon the 2017-2018 

volumes recorded and set forth in Exhibit H. The Minimum Monthly Payments represent 

monthly installment fees paid in a take-or-pay arrangement for the entire Minimum 

Quantity of water over the course of the fiscal year. The Minimum Quantity may be 

adjusted upward in the event Riverbend determines additional water is available, and such 

increase in the Minimum Quantity amount shall be approved through separate written 

agreement between the Parties. Any additional water available for sale by Riverbend from 

the Planned Improvements shall be allocated at the time the water is or becomes available 

as follows, listed in sequential order of priority: 

WATER DISTRIBUTION AND SUPPLY CONTRACT Page 5 of 22 

16



(1) First to Riverbend Member Entities, or their respective lessees or grantees, that 

have submitted written requests for additional or new water to Riverbend pursuant 

to Section 15, and prioritized among Riverbend Member Entities, or their 

respective lessees or grantees, based on the order of receipt by Riverbend; 

(2) Next to existing third-party contract customers of Riverbend that have submitted 

written requests for additional water to Riverbend, and prioritized among third 

party contract customers based on the order of receipt by Riverbend; and 

(3) Lastly, to new third-party contract customers. 

(b) Supply of Water to Member Entity from Other Contracts. Nothing in this Contract shall 

prevent Member Entity, or any other Riverbend Member Entity, from entering into a 

water supply contract with any other supplier of water that provides treated water through 

the supplier’s (or Member Entity’s) own facilities. 

(c) Unit of Measurement. The unit of measurement for water delivered hereunder shall be 

each 1,000 gallons of water, U.S. Standard Liquid Measure. 

(d) Additional Water Beyond Minimum Quantity. For all wholesale, treated water provided to 

Member Entity in excess of that to which it shall be entitled under the Minimum Quantity 

from the Planned Improvements (the “Excess Water Sold”), Member Entity shall pay the 

same rate per 1,000 gallons of Excess Water Sold as that established for water sold under 

the Minimum Quantity. Any Excess Water Sold shall only be delivered by Riverbend on an 

as-available basis pursuant to Section 2(a), and shall not change the Minimum Quantity set 

forth herein in any given fiscal year unless otherwise agreed to by the Parties in writing. 

(e) Point of Delivery. The Point of Delivery for the Minimum Quantity or Excess Water Sold 

to Member Entity shall be as delineated as the location set forth in Exhibit G to this 

Contract. 

(f) Title to all water supplied hereunder shall remain in Riverbend up to the Point of Delivery. 

Upon passing through Riverbend’s meter(s) existing and installed at the Point of Delivery, 

such title to the water shall pass to Member Entity at all stages of water treatment, uses, 

reuses, and wastewater treatment and disposition unless otherwise agreed by Member Entity 

in writing. To the extent permitted by law, the Parties shall be responsible for and agree to 

SAVE AND HOLD THE OTHER PARTY HARMLESS from all claims, demands and 

causes of action which may be asserted on account of the transportation, delivery and 

disposal of said water while title remains in such Party. 

(g) Delivery Limitations. The Parties acknowledge and agree that Member Entity cannot be 

guaranteed any specific quantity or pressure of water whenever Riverbend’s supply of water 

is limited or when the Regional Water System Facilities may become inoperative or in need 

of maintenance and repair. Riverbend shall give Member Entity reasonable notice of any 

possible interruption in the quantity or pressure of water. In the event of a temporary 

WATER DISTRIBUTION AND SUPPLY CONTRACT Page 6 of 22 

17



shortage of water, Riverbend shall distribute the available supply to Member Entity as 

required by state law, including but not limited to Section 11.039 of the Texas Water 

Code, as it may be amended or renumbered. In the event of the implementation of water 

delivery and use restrictions pursuant to Riverbend’s Drought Contingency Plan, as 

amended from time-to-time, which is developed and implemented under Section 11.1272 

of the Texas Water Code, as it may be amended or renumbered, Riverbend will limit and 

restrict Member Entity in the same manner as that for all Riverbend Member Entities and 

on a pro rata basis. Accordingly, Member Entity shall adopt a Water Conservation Plan 

and Drought Contingency Plan consistent with those of Riverbend, as they may be 

amended from time-to-time. 

(h) Limitation on Resale. Except as provided herein, Member Entity shall not sell water supplied 

by Riverbend other than for retail water service to the Member Entity’s current and future 

customers. Member Entity acknowledges and agrees that Riverbend has or will issue bonds, 

the interest of which is excludable from the gross income of the owners thereof for federal 

income tax purposes (“Tax Exempt Bonds”), and that such tax-exempt status will allow 

Riverbend to borrow funds at interest rates that will be lower than otherwise available to 

Riverbend, thereby lowering costs to Member Entity and the other Riverbend Member 

Entities. Certain laws may impose restrictions on the use of proceeds of any such Tax Exempt 

Bonds and on the use of the facilities and property financed by the Tax Exempt Bonds. As 

such, and except as provided in Section 2(i), Member Entity will not enter into any water 

supply contract other than with a retail customer for the provision of water service by 

Member Entity unless it has notified Riverbend in writing of its intent to enter into such 

contract and received approval from Riverbend. This section shall be of no further effect upon 

the retirement of all bonded indebtedness. 

(i) Other Contracts. Nothing in this Contract shall prevent Member Entity, or any other 

Riverbend Member Entity, from entering into water supply contracts with a supplier that 

provides treated water other than through Company Facilities that is commingled with 

other treated water in the Regional Water System Facilities. 

(j) Rate of Delivery and Pressure. Riverbend agrees to make available to Member Entity at 

the Point of Delivery wholesale treated water in the amounts required by Member Entity 

up to a rate of delivery of water, which shall be no less than 31.7 gallons per minute at 

any instant in time. Riverbend shall design and operate its facilities to ensure that treated 

water is provided to Member Entity at the Point of Delivery at not less than 35 pounds per 

square inch gauge measurement. 

SECTION 3: PAYMENTS FOR WATER 

(a) Calculation of Minimum Monthly Payment. All payments by Member Entity to Riverbend 

prior to the Transition Date shall be based only on debt service under Subsection (1) of this 

section and the payments made pursuant to the agreement in Exhibit E. Payments made 

prior to the Transition Date shall be billed and paid pursuant to Section 3(d). Beginning 30 

days prior to the Transition Date, the Minimum Monthly Payment shall be billed monthly 

as a price per 1,000 gallons of the Minimum Quantity of water purchased by the 

WATER DISTRIBUTION AND SUPPLY CONTRACT Page 7 of 22 

18



Member Entity on a take-or-pay basis for the fiscal year. The rate per 1,000 gallons of 

water shall consist of the sum total of the following, and as divided into monthly 

installments for the total Minimum Monthly Payment: 

(1) Debt Service. All amounts required for amortization of the Planned 

Improvements, including all bonds issued to provide and complete the Planned 

Improvements to Regional Water System Facilities pursuant to the terms and 

conditions of the bond authorizing resolutions and including, without limitation, 

the payment of all principal and interest, fees and charges of paying agents, and 

for the maintenance of any reserve, contingency or other funds necessary to pay 

the debt service of Riverbend. It is expressly understood, however, that after all 

bonds and all interest thereon have been completely paid and discharged, the 

provisions of this subsection (a)(1) item shall no longer apply in the computation 

of a rate per 1,000 gallons of water included in the Minimum Monthly Payment. 

(2) Advanced Rate Reduction Fund. All amounts that accumulate towards the 

reduction of rates for the purpose of keeping the price per 1,000 gallons of water 

lower over time in order to prevent rate increases in excess of one-hundred twenty 

five percent (125%) in such rate per 1,000 gallons of water in a future fiscal year. 

(3) Maintenance and Operation Expenses. All amounts required by Riverbend for the 

maintenance, operation and administration of all Regional Water System 

Facilities. Such expenses shall also include all water storage and water rights 

expenses as a pass through cost to be included in the calculation of maintenance 

and operation expenses. In order to determine the actual costs of operating and 

maintaining the Regional Water System Facilities for the purpose of computing 

the amount to be paid by Member Entity, Riverbend agrees that it will keep 

detailed and accurate accounts showing all direct expenses of operation and 

maintenance, including but not limited to labor and materials, power and pumping 

costs, purification and transmission costs. In addition, indirect expenses such as 

insurance, administration and supervision, transportation clearing account, general 

administrative expenses, including labor and supplies, utilities, rents, and all other 

expenses shall be accounted for and allocated to operation and maintenance of the 

Regional Water System Facilities. 

(b) Rates Based on Cost of Service. All rates charged under this section shall be set to recover 

the cost of service, based on generally accepted rate making principles, including but not 

limited to those set forth in the American Water Works Association (“AWWA”) Manual 

M1 on water rates. As part of the budget and planning process set forth in Section 3(f), 

each year Riverbend shall conduct a Capital Matrix Study that includes recommended 

regional wholesale rates based on costs of service in determining the regional rate. A copy 

of the most recent Capital Matrix Study conducted by Riverbend as of the Effective Date 

of this Contract is attached hereto as Exhibit I and incorporated herein for all purposes. 

The estimated rates per 1,000 gallons of the Minimum Quantity as of the Effective Date of 

this Contract are based upon a rate study conducted by Riverbend and are set forth in 

Exhibit J, which is attached hereto and incorporated herein for all purposes. Such rates 

WATER DISTRIBUTION AND SUPPLY CONTRACT Page 8 of 22 

19



set forth in Exhibit J are general estimates of the rates projected as of the Effective Date, 

and are not intended to replace the annual budget and official rate setting process set forth 

in Section 3(f). In addition, Member Entity, along with the other municipal Riverbend 

Member Entities, approved funding resolutions related to the regional rates and the rate-

making process, copies of which are attached hereto as Exhibit K and incorporated herein 

for all purposes. 

(c) Riverbend Payments. Riverbend shall also pay the same rate per 1,000 gallons of water as 

Riverbend Member Entities for all retail treated water sold to Riverbend customers. 

Pursuant to the budget process set forth in Section 3(f), Riverbend shall set a rate per 

1,000 gallons for any raw, untreated water sold for industrial or any other purposes, and 

any revenues of such raw water sales shall be used to offset the costs of Riverbend’s 

expenses set forth in Section 3(a)(3) calculated to form the rate per 1,000 gallons of 

wholesale treated water. 

(d) Monthly Payment Schedule and Billing. Riverbend shall bill Member Entity monthly for the 

Total Monthly Payment owed to Riverbend. Such Total Monthly Payment shall include the 

Minimum Monthly Payment plus any additional costs for additional services or Excess Water 

Sold during the previous calendar month. Each bill shall be delivered by Riverbend to 

Member Entity not later than the 15th day of each calendar month, and Member Entity shall 

make payment of the entire balance of the bill not later than the 15th day of the following 

month in which the bill is received. All payments shall be received not later than the payment 

deadline at the Riverbend office address set forth in Section 15. 

(e) Late Payment. In the event Member Entity fails to make any payments at the times herein 

specified, interest on such past due amounts shall accrue at the rate of five percent (5%) 

per month, or the maximum rate allowed by law, whichever is less, to be prorated as 

necessary, from the date such payment becomes due until paid in full with interest as 

herein specified. In the event such payment is not made timely, Riverbend shall have the 

remedies available under Section 16(j). Nothing in this Contract shall be construed as 

relieving Member Entity of its obligation to make the payments required by this section. 

(f) Riverbend Budget. Not later than August 1st of each fiscal year, commencing with 

Riverbend’s fiscal year in which this Contract becomes effective, Riverbend shall provide 

Member Entity with a copy of Riverbend’s proposed budget for the following fiscal year, 

showing the budgeted rate per 1,000 gallons on an annual and monthly installment basis, and 

all components thereof, to be paid by Member Entity for the following fiscal year. Such 

proposed budget shall also include a detailed report showing all costs and all revenues received 

under Section 3(a) for the as-current fiscal year. The detailed reporting for budget purposes 

shall also include Riverbend’s sales of raw water for the as-current fiscal year, if any, and the 

rate at which such raw water was sold. The budget shall also include the percentage of 

Member Entity’s and the Other Member Entities’ obligated Minimum Monthly Payments 

based upon the percentage of each entity’s Minimum Quantity to the total water sold to 

Riverbend Member Entities, for those budget years when such information is applicable. 

Member Entity shall have thirty (30) days to review and provide written comments on the 

proposed budget. Riverbend shall adopt its fiscal year budget as soon as 

WATER DISTRIBUTION AND SUPPLY CONTRACT Page 9 of 22 

20



practicable following the expiration of the thirty (30) day comment period. Depreciation shall 

be budgeted for in each applicable annual budget, and all depreciation values set aside will be 

maintained in the Regional Capital Improvement Fund. Each annual budget and the financial 

statements reflecting the balance of the Regional Capital Improvement Fund shall include a 

line item showing the starting and ending balances of depreciation for each fiscal year. 

Riverbend will also conduct a comprehensive financial audit at the conclusion of each fiscal 

year as required by the laws governing Riverbend. The beginning and ending budget balances 

as of the Effective Date are set forth in Exhibit L, which is attached hereto and incorporated 

herein for all purposes. All payments made pursuant to the agreement in Exhibit E shall 

continue until such time as the Minimum Monthly Payment applies as set forth herein. All 

fees paid to Riverbend under the Exhibit E agreement by Member Entity in the form of 

Advances to be exchanged for Water Payment Credits for the purchase of water in future 

years shall be discontinued through the budget process at such time as the new water 

treatment plant portion of the Planned Improvements is completed and operational and 

Member Entity begins paying the Minimum Monthly Payment as set forth herein. Water 

Payment Credits shall be exchanged by Member Entity in accordance with Section 3(g). 

(g) True Up. Beginning with the first budget cycle after the new water treatment plant portion of 

the Planned Improvements is completed and operational, Riverbend shall annually review its 

official audit to conduct a “true-up” review for the year to which the audit applies to 

determine whether there was any over-recovery or under-recovery of operational costs during 

that fiscal year in relation to Member Entity’s actual usage as compared to the Minimum 

Quantity paid for on a take-or-pay basis in advance as provided herein. Any over-recovery or 

under-recovery of costs shall be carried over as a credit or debit owed to Member Entity or 

Riverbend, as applicable, to the costs included in the budget that are considered to determine 

the rate and annual payment owed by Member Entity for the following fiscal year. Such 

annual true up shall also include an exchange of Member Entity’s Advances for Water 

Payment Credits, if redeemable pursuant to the annual true up review, whereby the total 

dollar amount of Advances paid by Member Entity shall be credited to the total dollar amount 

owed for the following fiscal year, applied on a prorated basis through a pro rata reduction in 

each Minimum Monthly Payment for the year; provided, however that the maximum amount 

of a Water Payment Credit in one year shall not exceed ten percent (10%) of the total 

Advances/total Water Payment Credits amount owed to Member Entity. Riverbend shall 

provide such Water Payment Credits in this manner each year until the Water Payment 

Credits have been fully disbursed to Member Entity. 

(h) Raw Water and Industrial Water Sales by Riverbend. Except as otherwise provided in any 

agreement entered into pursuant to Section 2(a), all raw, untreated water not allocated to a 

Riverbend Member Entity, or their respective lessees or grantees, shall remain in the 

exclusive possession and control of Riverbend for the benefit of Riverbend Member 

Entities, or their respective lessees or grantees, whether such benefit be in the form of 

reservation of water for future use and/or sales to third parties which shall benefit Member 

Entities pursuant to Subsection (i). Any raw, untreated water available shall be prioritized 

for sale by Riverbend in accordance with the sequential order set forth in Section 2(a). 

WATER DISTRIBUTION AND SUPPLY CONTRACT Page 10 of 22 

21



(i) No Subsidizing of Third Party Customers; Priorities on Applying Profits or Excess 

Revenues. In the event the Regional Water System Facilities are used to provide industrial, 

commercial, wholesale, raw water, and/or any other type of water distribution or service to 

third parties that are not a Riverbend Member Entity or their respective lessees or grantees 

(the “Third Party Sales”), the rate charged for such Third Party Sales shall include the pro 

rata rate for operating and maintaining the Regional Water System Facilities as that paid by 

Riverbend Member Entities. It is the intent that all Riverbend Member Entities receive a pro 

rata share or benefit pursuant to Section 13 from any use of the Regional Water System 

Facilities to provide Third Party Sales. Any and all profits or revenues generated either by 

such Third Party Sales or from the sale, lease, or any other authorization to store, divert, 

and/or use water developed pursuant to the implementation of the Ultimate Rule Curve, 

regardless of the place or purpose of use, and regardless of whether the water is stored in or 

diverted from Wright Patman Lake or utilized by other means, shall be applied by 

Riverbend as follows, listed in sequential order of priority: 

(1) First pay down any Riverbend outstanding bond obligations; 

(2) If all bonded indebtedness has been retired, next cover a portion of the operational 

costs to allow for rates to be reduced for all Member Entities; and 

(3) Remaining revenues shall be paid in dividends on a pro rata basis to Riverbend 

Member Entities based on percentage of interest as set forth in Section 13. Member 

Entity has the discretion of whether to accept such dividend in the form of a future 

credit on one or more Total Monthly Payment(s), through check issued by Riverbend 

directly to Member Entity, or through contribution to the Regional Capital 

Improvement Fund, as defined in Section 1(K). If Member Entity elects to have its 

available dividends issued by check or applied to the Regional Capital Improvement 

Fund, Member Entity shall specify either method by resolution of its governing body 

not later than October 1st of each year where a dividend payment applies after receipt 

of notice from Riverbend that a dividend is owed. Failure of Member Entity to 

provide Riverbend with a copy of such resolution by October 1st upon receiving 

notice of the availability of dividends shall result in the issuance of the dividend to 

Member Entity in the form of a future credit. 

(j) Additional Services. In the event Member Entity requests additional services from 

Riverbend in addition to the Planned Improvements as specifically set forth herein that 

will be for the exclusive benefit of the Member Entity, or a combination of Member 

Entity and any other Riverbend Member Entity, Member Entity and Riverbend shall 

execute a separate written agreement in accordance with Section 7, and any additional 

payment required thereunder may be billed in addition to the Minimum Monthly Payment 

for a Total Monthly Payment. Any such payments for additional services shall not be 

credited towards or change Member Entity’s obligation to pay the Total Monthly Payment 

as set forth herein. 

(k) Rates of Member Entity. Member Entity agrees to fix and collect such rates and charges 

for water services to its customers as will, in combination with any other funds legally 

WATER DISTRIBUTION AND SUPPLY CONTRACT Page 11 of 22 

22



available and reasonably assured for the purpose, make possible the prompt payment of 

all payments due hereunder. 

(l) Unconditional Obligation to Pay. Member Entity recognizes that Riverbend’s bonds will 

be payable from and secured by pledges of the sums of money to be received by Riverbend 

from Member Entity under this Contract, from the other Riverbend Member Entities under 

similar contracts, and from other Riverbend customers. In order to make such bonds 

marketable at the lowest available interest rate, it is to the mutual advantage of Riverbend 

and Member Entity that Member Entity’s obligation to make the payments required 

hereunder be, and the same is hereby made, unconditional. Consequently, the payments 

required to be made by Member Entity under the terms of this Contract shall be due and 

payable as herein specified in any and all events and regardless of whether there shall be, 

for any reason, a delay in the completion of all or any part of the construction of Planned 

Improvements, regardless of whether the Regional Water System Facilities shall have been 

wholly or partially destroyed or damaged and/or whether Riverbend shall have tendered 

water to Member Entity. This covenant shall be for the benefit of the holders of 

Riverbend’s tax-exempt bonds, secured in whole or in part from revenues of the Regional 

Water System Facilities. The agreement by Member Entity to make the payments required 

are separate and independent covenants and Member Entity shall have no right of offset, 

recoupment, or counterclaim. Member Entity agrees to operate and maintain its water 

system in such manner and to make such charges for the water and services supplied 

thereby to all customers so that the revenues derived therefrom will always be adequate to 

enable Member Entity to promptly make all payments due to Riverbend under this 

Contract. All payments so made shall be deemed expenses of maintaining and operating 

Member Entity’s water system. 

(m) Operating Expenses. Member Entity represents and covenants that the water supply to be 

obtained pursuant to this Contract is essential and necessary to the operation of its 

waterworks system, and that all payments to be made hereunder by it will constitute 

reasonable and necessary operating expenses of Member Entity’s waterworks system as 

defined in Section 1502.056 of the Texas Government Code, as amended; and that all such 

payments will constitute reasonable and necessary operating expenses of the Member 

Entity’s waterworks system, under any and all revenue bond issues of Member Entity. 

(n) Payments from Water Revenues. Riverbend shall never have the right to demand payment 

by the Member Entity of any obligations assumed by it or imposed on it under and by virtue 

of this Contract from funds raised or to be raised by taxes levied by the Member Entity. The 

Member Entity’s obligations under this Contract shall never be construed to be a debt of the 

Member Entity of such kind as to require it under the law of this State to levy and collect a 

tax to discharge such obligation, it being expressly understood by the Parties hereto that all 

payments due by the Member Entity hereunder are to be made from water revenues received 

by the Member Entity. 

WATER DISTRIBUTION AND SUPPLY CONTRACT Page 12 of 22 

23



SECTION 4: WATER QUALITY 

Riverbend agrees to operate the treatment and transmission facilities in such manner as is 

required by the laws of the State of Texas and TCEQ rules up to the Point of Delivery. It is the 

intent of the Parties that the water supplied under this Contract shall be treated water meeting the 

potable water requirements of TCEQ and Texas Department of State Health Services, and of their 

respective successor agencies, as applicable, including at the Point of Delivery. 

SECTION 5: WATER MEASUREMENT 

(a) Master Meter. Riverbend shall furnish and install at the Point of Delivery by the Transition 

Date, as defined in Section 1(Q), an electromagnetic-type or ultrasonic-type master meter, 

or, as technology develops during the life this Contract, a meter with equivalent or superior 

accuracy and reliability, for measuring the quantity of water delivered to Member Entity 

under this Contract (the “Master Meter”). Riverbend will, at its sole expense, select, install, 

test, and maintain the Master Meter based on guidance and practices provided by the 

American Water Works Association in AWWA Manual M6, and will continue to do so at 

all times during the life of this Contract in conformity with all addenda, amendments, and 

any other updates to AWWA Manual M6. Both Riverbend and Member Entity shall have 

access to the Master Meter and related equipment and other appurtenances at all reasonable 

times. Riverbend will at all times keep a true record of all Mater Meter readings. 

Riverbend will provide Member Entity such information, at a minimum, not later than the 

10th day of each month. 

(b) Meter Calibration. Riverbend will be solely responsible for operating, maintaining, 

testing, and calibrating the Master Meter and all related metering equipment. Riverbend 

will test the Master Meter calibration, including all related metering equipment, as often 

as it considers necessary, but in no event less than twice each calendar year. If the results 

of any calibration test indicate a measurement inaccuracy in excess of two percent (2%), 

Riverbend will correct its records that reflect the inaccuracy for a period extending back 

to the time such inaccuracy began, if such time is ascertainable. If the time the inaccuracy 

began is not ascertainable, then Riverbend will correct its appropriate records for a period 

extending back one-half of the time elapsed since the last date of calibration, but in no 

event further back than a period of six (6) months. If the Master Meter is out of service or 

in need of repair so that Riverbend cannot measure water delivery volumes within two-

percent accuracy, Riverbend will correct the error in its records that indicate the amount 

of water it has delivered or will deliver to the Member Entity during the period the Master 

Meter is out of service or in need of repair by correcting the error if the percentage of the 

error is ascertainable by Master Meter calibration tests, or by estimating the quantity of 

water by the deliveries made during preceding periods under similar conditions when the 

meter was registering accurately. Riverbend will notify Member Entity in writing at least 

three business days before it conducts any accuracy testing of the Master Meter. 

Riverbend will allow Member Entity’s representatives and agents to be present during the 

testing for observation. 

WATER DISTRIBUTION AND SUPPLY CONTRACT Page 13 of 22 

24



SECTION 6: TERM OF CONTRACT 

This Contract shall be and continue in full force and effect for a period of fifty (50) years 

following the Effective Date (the “Term”). This Contract shall automatically be extended for two 

(2) additional ten (10) year terms, unless either Party terminates it at the end of the then current 

Term by giving the other Party written notice of the intent to terminate at least six (6) months 

prior to the end of the then current Term. 

SECTION 7: MODIFICATION OF PROVISIONS 

This Contract may be modified only by separate written agreement between the Parties, 

and only following approval of the governing bodies of both Riverbend and Member Entity. No 

separate written agreement shall be made between the Parties that in any way affects or alters, 

Member Entity’s Minimum Monthly Payment and all other payment obligations hereunder as 

such are based on Riverbend’s issuance of bonds. 

SECTION 8: SALES OR USE TAXES 

In the event any sales or use taxes, or taxes of any similar nature, are hereafter imposed 

upon the sale, use, or consumption of the water received by Member Entity under this Contract, 

the amount of such taxes shall be borne by Member Entity, in addition to all other charges, and 

whenever Riverbend shall be required to pay, collect, or remit any such taxes on water received 

by Member Entity then Member Entity shall promptly reimburse Riverbend for such amount. 

SECTION 9: RIVERBEND USE OF MEMBER ENTITY FACILITIES 

Member Entity grants permission for Riverbend to use only the Regional Water System 

Facilities and related infrastructure necessary to provide water to Member Entity, including only 

that ingress and egress reasonably necessary for access to the Regional Water System Facilities. 

SECTION 10: PLANNED IMPROVEMENTS 

The Parties acknowledge and agree that some or all of the Planned Improvements are 

subject to the issuance of bonds, and that Riverbend is not in a position to guarantee the 

construction of the Planned Improvements to the Regional Water System Facilities or the date on 

which such Planned Improvements will be complete. Riverbend agrees, however, to make 

reasonable, diligent efforts to provide the Planned Improvements, but is not liable to Member 

Entity for any damages occasioned by delay in funding for any Planned Improvements. It is 

further understood that any obligation on the part of Riverbend and Member Entity is conditioned 

upon the successful sale of Riverbend bonds in the amounts required to provide some or all of the 

Planned Improvements. Member Entity acknowledges and agrees that Planned Improvements 

identified in Exhibit F are necessary for the distribution of wholesale potable water service to 

Member Entity and the Riverbend Member Entities. 

WATER DISTRIBUTION AND SUPPLY CONTRACT Page 14 of 22 

25



SECTION 11: FORCE MAJEURE 

(a) The term “Force Majeure” as employed in this Contract means acts of God, strikes, lock-

outs, or other industrial disturbances, acts of public enemy, orders or actions of any kind 

of the government of the United States or of the State of Texas, or any civil or military 

authority, insurrections, riots, epidemics, pandemics, landslides, lightning, earthquakes, 

fires, hurricanes, storms, floods, wash-outs, droughts, arrests, restraints of government 

and people, civil disturbances, explosions, breakage or accident to dams, machinery, 

pipelines, or canals or other structures or machinery, partial or entire failure of water 

supply and inability on the part of Riverbend to deliver water hereunder, or of Member 

Entity to receive water, on account of any other cause not reasonably within the control of 

the Party claiming such inability. 

(b) If either Party is unable to carry out its obligations under this Contract because of Force 

Majeure, then the obligations are suspended during the continuance of the asserted 

inability, but for no longer period, if the Party notifies the other in writing, within 10 

calendar days of the Force Majeure, describing the inability and why it interferes with the 

notifying Party’s obligations. The Parties shall endeavor to remove or overcome such 

inability with all reasonable dispatch. 

(c) The settlement of strikes and lockouts shall be entirely within the discretion of the Party 

having the difficulty. The above requirement that any Force Majeure shall be remedied 

with all reasonable dispatch shall not require the settlement of strikes and lock-outs by 

acceding to the demands of the opposing parties when such settlement is unfavorable to it 

in the judgment of the Party having the difficulty. No failure of Riverbend to meet any 

obligation by reason of Force Majeure shall relieve Member Entity from its obligations to 

make the Minimum Monthly Payment as set forth in Section 3. 

(d) No damage shall be recoverable from Riverbend by reason of the suspension of delivery 

of water due to any of the causes above mentioned. If Riverbend’s ability to deliver water 

to Member Entity is affected by any of such causes, Riverbend shall promptly notify 

Member Entity in writing giving the particulars as soon as practicable after the occurrence 

of the cause or causes for such interruption. 

(e) It is expressly recognized by Member Entity that Riverbend may be compelled to make 

necessary alterations, repairs, or extensions of new or additional water transportation 

facilities from time to time during the Term of this Contract. Suspension of delivery to 

Member Entity due to such operation shall not be cause for claim of damage on the part 

of Riverbend, provided that Riverbend will make all reasonable effort to provide Member 

Entity with water in accordance with this Contract. Riverbend will give Member Entity as 

much advance notice as may be practicable of the suspension of delivery and of the 

estimated duration thereof. 

WATER DISTRIBUTION AND SUPPLY CONTRACT Page 15 of 22 

26



SECTION 12: AGREEMENT BETWEEN RIVERBEND AND TEXARKANA, TEXAS;  

RIVERBEND MEMBER ENTITIES  

Member Entity has contracted with the City of Texarkana, Texas, for water supply (“the 

current water supply contract”). Riverbend and the City of Texarkana, Texas, has or will enter 

into a separate contract regarding the Transition Date. Riverbend shall provide written notice to 

Member Entity specifying the Transition Date, which shall be delivered not less than 60 days 

prior to Riverbend’s scheduled delivery of water to Member Entity on the Transition Date. 

Member Entity agrees that it shall promptly authorize execution of the document contained in 

Exhibit M within 60 days of the Effective Date of this Contract in order for the Transition Date 

to also function as a termination date of the mutual obligations under the current water supply 

contract. Riverbend will enter into water supply contracts of similar form to this Contract with 

other Riverbend Member Entities for the purpose of effectuating the Planned Improvements and 

provision of regional water service to Riverbend Member Entities. 

SECTION 13: FUTURE INTEREST IN FACILITIES 

It is agreed by Riverbend that at such time as all bonds or other indebtedness incurred in 

connection with those facilities owned by Riverbend within the Regional Water System Facilities 

have been fully paid and discharged, Riverbend will, upon Member Entity’s request, convey to 

Member Entity an undivided interest in such facilities equal to that percentage of the amount paid 

by Member Entity under this Contract to discharge the principal of bond obligations issued by 

Riverbend, as that amount compares to the amount paid by the other Riverbend Member Entities, 

each of whom shall be entitled to a like conveyance representing their proportionate contributions 

of like nature to retire such bonds and any other indebtedness. Such conveyance is contingent on 

Member Entity’s full performance of this Contract through the date all bonds or other 

indebtedness have been fully paid and discharged. 

SECTION 14: ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

Member Entity may appoint one of the members of its governing body or one of its 

officers or employees as a member of an Advisory Committee which will be composed of one 

member appointed by each of the Riverbend Member Entities. The function of the Advisory 

Committee will be to consult and advise with representatives of Riverbend concerning the 

Planned Improvements and any future plans for expansion, methods for improved service, and 

other matters of mutual interest for regional water distribution. Said Advisory Committee may 

make recommendations with reference to any related matters to the Riverbend Board. 

SECTION 15: NOTICES 

Any formal notice, request, or demand provided for in this Contract shall be in writing and 

shall be considered to have been duly delivered when sent by email, with a copy also to be sent by 

registered or certified mail to the addresses set forth below. The date of receipt for any registered or 

certified mail shall serve as the date of delivery. Bills submitted by Riverbend to Member Entity 

may also be sent by email to the email address set forth below. Contact by phone or facsimile may 

WATER DISTRIBUTION AND SUPPLY CONTRACT Page 16 of 22 

27



be utilized by the Parties as necessary for informal, day-to-day communication regarding the 

provision of water supply to Member Entity, at the information set forth below. 

Any such notice to Riverbend: 

Riverbend Water Resources District 

Attn: Executive Director/CEO 

228 Texas Avenue, Suite A 

New Boston, Texas 75570 

Phone: (903) 831-0091 

Facsimile: (903) 831-0096 

Email: kyledooley@rwrd.org  

Any such notice to Member Entity: 

City of Leary 

Attn: City Administrator 

P.O. Box 1799 

Hooks, Texas 75561 

Phone: (903) 826-1653 

Facsimile: 

Email: cityofleary@windstream.net   

Either Party may change the address or other contact information for notice to it by giving notice 

of such change in accordance with the provisions of this section. 

SECTION 16: MISCELLANEOUS 

(a) Recitals and Exhibits. Each of the recitals set forth above is true and correct, and 

incorporated herein for all purposes. Exhibits A through O attached hereto are 

incorporated hereby reference for all purposes: 

Exhibit A 1969 “Water Supply System Sale-Purchase-Financing Agreement” between 

Lake Texarkana Water Supply Corporation and Texarkana, Texas 

Exhibit B 1969 water supply contracts between Texarkana, Texas and the “Texas 

contracting cities” 

Exhibit C 2010 extensions of 1969 water supply contracts between Texarkana, Texas 

and the “Texas contracting cities” 

Exhibit D Riverbend Regional Water Master Plan Study 

Exhibit E 2011 Amendment to Water Purchase Contract 

Exhibit F Planned Improvements 

WATER DISTRIBUTION AND SUPPLY CONTRACT Page 17 of 22 

28

mailto:kyledooley@rwrd.org
mailto:rcmansfield@windstream.net


Exhibit G Point of Delivery Delineation 

Exhibit H 2017-2018 True Up Showing Minimum Quantity Amount 

Exhibit I Capital Matrix 

Exhibit J Rate Study 

Exhibit K Member Entity Funding Resolutions 

Exhibit L Beginning and Ending Balances for Budget Purposes 

Exhibit M Member Entity and Texarkana, Texas Termination Agreement 

Exhibit N Insurance Coverages 

Exhibit O Resolutions Approving this Contract 

(b) Insurance. As to all activities undertaken by or on behalf of the Parties, and as a separate and 

independent obligation hereunder, the Parties shall each carry during the Term of this 

Contract insurance in the amounts and for the coverages set forth on Exhibit N. Within 

thirty (30) days after the Effective Date, the Parties shall provide each other the current 

certificates evidencing such insurance coverages, and shall to the extent of the liabilities 

assumed, require that all of its insurance policies, whether or not required by this Contract, 

waive subrogation, be primary and noncontributing with respect to any other policies 

providing coverage, and add the other Party as an additional insured (except for worker’s 

compensation coverage) for the full limits of each such policy and such additional insured 

coverage shall be provided on a blanket basis without restriction for the sole or concurrent 

negligence of the additional insureds and not being restricted (i) to “ongoing operations,” (ii) 

to coverage for vicarious liability, or (iii) to circumstances in which the named insured is 

partially negligent. The Parties shall not cancel or modify such insurance coverages without 

the other’s approval and shall immediately provide notification in writing if such insurance is 

terminated for any reason. 

(c) Severability. The Parties hereto agree that if any of the provisions of this contract 

contravene or are held invalid under the laws of the State of Texas, such invalid provision 

shall not invalidate the entire Contract, and the Contract shall be construed as though not 

containing that particular provision, with the rights and obligations of the Parties to be 

construed and in force accordingly. 

(d) Headings. The captions and headings appearing in this Contract are used merely to 

facilitate reference and will have no bearing upon its interpretation. 

(e) Covenant of Good Faith and Fair Dealings. Riverbend and Member Entity agree to 

cooperate and to deal with one another fairly and in good faith at all times to effectuate the 

purposes and intent of this Contract. The Parties also agree to execute and deliver such 

WATER DISTRIBUTION AND SUPPLY CONTRACT Page 18 of 22 

29



further legal documents or instruments and to perform such further acts as are reasonably 

necessary to effectuate the purposes and intent of this Contract. 

(f) Governing Law and Dispute Resolution. This Contract shall be construed in accordance 

with and governed by the laws of the State of Texas without regard to principles of conflicts 

of laws. Any disputes between the Parties arising under this Contract may be resolved 

according to the following dispute resolution procedures, which are not considered to be a 

condition precedent to seeking any remedies available in law or equity: 

(1) A meeting shall first be held promptly between the Parties within sixty (60) days from 

the date of delivery of notice pursuant to Sections 15 and subsection (j) of this section to 

attempt in good faith to informally negotiate a resolution of the dispute. The required 

attendees to a meeting held under this subsection shall be one (1) Riverbend Board of 

Directors representative representing Member Entity, the President of the Riverbend 

Board of Directors, the Riverbend Executive Director/CEO, and the Mayor and City 

Manager, if applicable, of Member Entity. Such negotiations may include one or both 

Parties securing independent auditors or consultants. 

(2) If resolution is not readily achieved by informal negotiations under Subsection (1) of 

this section, the Parties may agree to select a neutral third party (“NTP”) to assist in 

resolution of the dispute. If used, the NTP shall be a person with expertise in the 

subject matter of the dispute and in the interpretation of contract documents who is 

immediately available and acceptable to the Parties. The NTP shall promptly convene 

a private meeting between representatives of the Parties to hear the Parties’ positions 

and render oral recommendations for resolution of the dispute. The recommendations 

of the NTP shall not be binding on any Party. By separate written agreement, the 

Parties may further define the role of the NTP and may expand the NTP to consist of a 

team of persons possessing the necessary expertise. Use of the NTP is voluntary. No 

party to this Contract will be deemed to be in breach of this Contract solely because of 

a refusal to utilize a NTP. 

(3) At all times during the course of any dispute resolution, the Parties shall continue 

diligently and without delay to perform the respective services and obligations under 

this Contract. 

(4) Each Party shall pay its own costs and expenses, including attorney’s fees, incurred 

during any facet of dispute resolution procedures set forth in this section. The fees and 

expenses of the NTP shall be divided equally between the Parties. 

(g) Authority. The Parties agree that the Contract is executed and fully performable in Bowie 

County, Texas. Each of the individuals signing on behalf of Riverbend and Member Entity 

hereby confirm that he or she has the authority to execute this Contract on behalf of the 

Party indicated by their signature and have the authority to bind such Party hereto. The 

Parties have each approved this Contract through respective resolutions of their governing 

bodies, attached hereto as Exhibit O. The Parties’ resolutions approving this Contract shall 

also set forth the individual authorized to sign this Contract on behalf of the Party. 

WATER DISTRIBUTION AND SUPPLY CONTRACT Page 19 of 22 

30



(h) Assignment; No Third Party Beneficiaries.  

(1) This Contract will be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Parties and their 

respective successors and permitted assigns only. This Contract may not be 

transferred or assigned by either Party, without the prior written consent of the other 

Party, which consent will not be unreasonably withheld, delayed, or conditioned. 

(2) Except as otherwise provided herein, nothing in this Contract, express or implied, 

confers any rights or remedies on any person or entity not a Party hereto other 

than the successors and assigns of the Parties hereto. 

(i) Entire Agreement. This Contract and the Exhibits attached hereto constitute the entire 

agreement and understanding between the Parties hereof. No provision of this Contract 

may be changed, modified, waived or discharged orally, and no change, modification, 

waiver or amendment of any provision will be effective except by separate written 

instrument to be executed and approved by the Parties hereto. 

(j) Remedies Upon Default.  

(1) In addition to other remedies available at law or equity, in the event of a monetary 

default by Member Entity hereunder, including nonpayment on a timely basis of 

any amount due, that continues for a period of thirty (60) days or more, then 

Riverbend shall give written notice to Member Entity of such default and request 

that such default be remedied with all reasonable dispatch. In the event that 

Member Entity has not cured such default within sixty (60) days after the receipt 

of such notice, Riverbend may suspend delivery of the Minimum Quantity to 

Member Entity, and may terminate this Contract and pursue all available remedies 

against Member Entity in law and equity. 

(2) In the event of any non-monetary default, upon continuance of the default for a 

period of thirty (60) days or more, then the non-defaulting Party shall give written 

notice to the defaulting Party specifying the matter with respect to the default and 

request that the default be remedied. In the event that defaulting Party has not 

cured such default within sixty (60) days after the receipt of such notice, the non-

defaulting Party may pursue all available remedies against Member Entity in law 

and equity. 

(3) The remedies provided for herein are not exclusive, and all other remedies at law 

or in equity may be availed of by either Party and shall be cumulative, except as 

otherwise provided herein. 

(4) To the extent permitted by law, neither Party shall be liable to the other for 

special, consequential, incidental, punitive, exemplary or indirect damages or lost 

profits whether arising in agreement, tort, strict liability, or otherwise. 

(k) Waiver. Unless specifically waived in express terms herein, no failure on the part of either 

Party to this Contract to require the performance by the other Party of any portion of this 

WATER DISTRIBUTION AND SUPPLY CONTRACT Page 20 of 22 

31



Contract will in any way affect either Party’s right to enforce such provision, nor will any 
waiver by either Party be taken or held to be a waiver of any other provision. No rights 

under this Contract may be waived except by separate written agreement executed by 

both Parties. 

(l) Counterparts. This Contract may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which will 

be deemed an original, but all of which together will constitute one and the same 

instrument. 

(m) Effective Date. This contract shall become effective upon the last date of execution by the 

Parties hereto. 

WATER DISTRIBUTION AND SUPPLY CONTRACT Page 21 of 22 

32



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto, acting under authority of their respective 
governing bodies, have caused this Contract to be duly executed as follows: 

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT 

By: 

Printed Name: Kyle Dooley, P.E. 

Title: Executive Director/CEO 

Date: 

ATTEST: 

CITY OF LEARY, TEXAS 

By:  

Printed Name: B.J. Martin 

Title: Mayor 

Date: 

ATTEST: 

WATER DISTRIBUTION AND SUPPLY CONTRACT Page 22 of 22 

33



REGULAR CALLED MEETING  

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  
WEDNESDAY, JUNE 24, 2020 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM VI. B. 

RWRD RESO 20200624-02 

Jetter Purchase 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

34



 

 

RIVERBEND RESOLUTION NO. 20200624-02 

 

AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR/CEO TO  

ACCEPT AND AWARD BIDS NOT TO EXCEED $75,000 ON A TRAILER MOUNTED 

SEWER CLEANER  

 

WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District is a conservation and reclamation 

district created under and essential to accomplish the purposes of Section 59 Article XVI, Texas 

Constitution, existing pursuant to and having the powers set forth in Chapter 9601 of the Special 

District Local Laws Code of the State of Texas; and 

 

WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District has a need for a trailer mounted 

sewer cleaner; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Riverbend Operations Manager requested quotes from at least three 

separate companies for a sewer cleaner; and 

 

WHEREAS, four companies (CLS Equipment Co., Kinloch, Durand-Wayland, and 

RED Municipal & Industrial Equipment) all provide certain needed equipment and supplies; 

all are qualified and certified to perform the required services for installation of the needed 

equipment and supplies; and each has submitted an acceptable quote in response to the 

request; and 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Executive Director/CEO shall be 

and is hereby authorized to accept and award bids not to exceed $75,000 on a trailer mounted 

sewer cleaner, in consultation with Riverbend's Operations Manager, and should any 

agreement/contract be necessary to secure the associated equipment or supplies for the sewer 

cleaner, such agreement/contract must be reviewed by Riverbend's general counsel. 

 

PASSED and APPROVED this 24th day of June 2020 
 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Sonja Hubbard, President 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________________ 

Marshall Wood, Secretary 

 

Attached: Submitted Quotes 

35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



REGULAR CALLED MEETING  

RIVERBEND WATER RESOURCES DISTRICT  
WEDNESDAY, JUNE 24, 2020 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM VI. C. 

RWRD RESO 20200624-03 

TML Health Benefits Agreement 

 

 

 

 

46



 

 

RIVERBEND RESOLUTION NO. 20200624-03 

 
AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR/CEO TO EXECUTE INTERLOCAL  

AGREEMENT(S) FOR EMPLOYEES MEDICAL INSURANCE WITH TML 

HEALTH BENEFITS POOL 

 

 

WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District is a conservation and reclamation 

district created under and essential to accomplish the purposes of Section 59 Article XVI, Texas 

Constitution, existing pursuant to and having the powers set forth in Chapter 9601 of the Special 

District Local Laws Code of the State of Texas; and 

 

WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District currently has an interlocal agreement 

with TML Health Benefits Pool for a health benefits plan including health reimbursement and 

retirement reimbursement for district employees; and 

 

WHEREAS, Riverbend Water Resources District has a continued need for health 

benefits, health reimbursement arrangement, and retirement reimbursement arrangement services 

to support the operation and management of its wet utilities; and 

 

WHEREAS, TML Health Benefits Pool provides said needed health reimbursement 

arrangement and retirement reimbursement arrangement services and is fully qualified and 

certified to perform these services; and 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Executive Director/CEO shall be 

and is hereby authorized to enter into interlocal agreement(s) with TML Health Benefits Pool to 

provide health benefits under the employee benefits pool, health reimbursement arrangement, and 

retirement reimbursement arrangement services for Riverbend Water Resources District. 

 
PASSED and APPROVED this 24th day of June 2020 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Sonja Hubbard, President 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Marshall Wood, Vice President 

 

Attached: TML Health Benefits Pool Rerate Notice and Benefit Verification 

47



Medical

Employer Group Medical Plan

Plan Benefit 
Percent

In Net 
Ded

Out Net 
Ded

In Net 
OOP*

Office 
Visit

Rates Current New

P85-100-30-Mac A 80/50 $1000 $1250 $3000 $25 EE Only: $651.20 $651.20

EE + Spouse: $1,321.94 $1,321.94

EE + Child(ren): $1,140.18 $1,140.18

EE + Family: $2,040.86 $2,040.86

*In Network Deductible applies towards In Network OOP.

Riverbend WRD

TML Health Renewal Notice and Benefit Verification Form

Plan Year 2020-2021 (12 Months)

Rates are subject to change if there is any legislation passed during the plan year affecting benefits.
Supplemental benefits cannot be accessed without accessing the TML Health Medical Benefit Plan.

This renewal notice contains proprietary and confidential information of TML Health.

Basic Life and AD&D: Plan 6 (1xBAE, Max $100,000)

Current Rate New Rate

Life: $0.194 $0.194

$0.040 $0.040AD&D:

Vision B

Rates Current New

EE Only: $9.00 $9.00

EE + Family: $27.00 $27.00

Dental III

Rates Current New

EE Only: $37.64 $37.64

EE + Family: $96.68 $96.68

Original

Employee Spouse Child Family

Employer  
Contribution for 
Active Employees

Amount        % of Rate Amount        % of Rate Amount        % of Rate Amount        % of Rate

$_______ or _______% $_______ or _______% $_______ or _______% $_______ or _______%

Monthly Employer Contribution Amounts

TML Health requires 60% employer contribution toward employee medical – Minimum employer contribution is $390.72

Page 1 of 3 PRIVERB1 (714) - Oct-0148



Benefit Waiting Period

None

Continuation of Coverage (Cobra)

Yes

Basic & Additional Retiree Life

No Basic & Additional Retiree Life Coverage

Additional Employee Life and AD&D

Age of Employee Current Rate per $1000 New Rate per $1000

Under 30 0.061 0.061

30 - 34 0.069 0.069

35 - 39 0.100 0.100

40 - 44 0.130 0.130

45 - 49 0.198 0.198

50 - 54 0.332 0.332

55 - 59 0.595 0.595

60 - 64 0.913 0.913

65 - 69 1.513 1.513

70 and over 2.431 2.431

Voluntary AD&D

No Voluntary AD&D Coverage

Dependent Life

No Dependent Life Coverage

STD

No STD Coverage

LTD

No LTD Coverage

Pre-65 Retiree Vision

No Pre-65 Retiree Vision Coverage

Pre-65 Retiree Dental

No Pre-65 Retiree Dental Coverage

Pre-65 Retiree Medical

No Pre-65 Retiree Medical Coverage

Employee Spouse Child Family

Employer  
Contribution for 
Pre-65 Retirees

Amount        % of Rate Amount        % of Rate Amount        % of Rate Amount        % of Rate

$_______ or _______% $_______ or _______% $_______ or _______% $_______ or _______%

Retiree Dependent Life

No Retiree Dependent Life Coverage

Page 2 of 3 PRIVERB1 (714) - Oct-0149



Signature Section

The entity named on this Rerate and Benefit Verification Form desires large claim information as specified in Article 21.49-15 of the Insurance Code in 
Section 2.(2), to be for individual claims that reach or exceed $35,000 during the plan year. This information is considered confidential for purposes of 
Chapter 552 of the Local Government Code.

The rates are based on census information five months prior to plan year. If the census changes by more than 10%, TML Health reserves the right to revise 
rates due to census change and underwriting impact.

The undersigned employer hereby acknowledges that for an employee to receive coverage, TML Health must receive enrollment information within thirty-
one (31) days of the commencement of employment regardless of whether the Employer has a waiting or a waiting and orientation period. If an employee is 
not enrolled within thirty-one (31) days of hire, the employee cannot be added to the Plan until the next Open Enrollment period or a qualifying event occurs.

Authorized Signature Date

Printed Name Title

Tax ID Number

263668540

Flex, HRA, HSA & RRA

Flex Admin HRA Admin HSA Admin RRA Admin

Yes Yes No Yes

If employer accesses Flex and/or HRA, HSA or RRA, only one charge of $3.70 per participant per month will be incurred.

HRA Administration

Employer making monthly depost Y  or  N Monthly deposit amount  $

Employer Prefunding Y  or  N Prefunded amount  $

If employer prefunds, new employees during the 
plan year get prorated amount Y  or  N Will prorated amount be divisible by 12 or 

some other amount?
Div by 12  or  Variable
or  Other $

Prefund does not apply to new employees Y  or  N

Defined contribution (variable monthly amounts) Y  or  N Monthly defined contribution amount  $

RRA Administration

Employer making monthly depost Y  or  N Monthly deposit amount  $

Employer making 1x prefunded deposit Y  or  N Prefunded amount  $

Employer will NOT make any deposits; only 
remaining HRA will rollover Y  or  N

Page 3 of 3 PRIVERB1 (714) - Oct-0150




